
224th meeting 

TWENTY-SECOND MEETING 
Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 

on Monday, 13 February 1950, at 2.30 p.m. 

President : Mr. Roger GAR.REAU. 

Present : The representatives of the following coun­
tries : Argentina, Australia, Belgium, China, Dominican 
Republic, France, Iraq, New Zealand, Philippines, 
United Kingdom, United States of America. 

43. Programme of Work 

1. Mr. MuNoz (Argentina) said that as a result of a 
number of private talks he had come to the conclusion 
that the majority of representatives on the Council 
were opposed to its meeting on Saturday mornings. If 
the Council wished to keep to the same number of work­
ing hours per week, it could sit somewhat longer each 
day from Monday to Friday and dispense with the 
Saturday meetings. 

2. The PRESIDENT reminded the meeting that the 
Geneva Office worked a five-and-a-half-day week. The 
Director of that Office had pointed out to him that the 
Economic and Social Council had met on Saturday 
mornings. It might be possible to solve the problem 
on the lines suggested by the Argentine representative, 
although there were technical difficulties in the way of 
holding longer meetings. The Council might alter­
natively hold two plenary meetings on Fridays, but 
he did not know.what administrative difficulties such 
a procedure Jl?.ight entail. 

3. Mr. Roo (Assistant Secretary-General in charge of 
the Department of Trusteeship and Information from 
Non-Self-Governing Territories) added that, as it was 
the general practice at the European Office of the 
United Nations to hold meetings on Saturday mornings, 
failure to do so was liable to give rise to uneconomic 
variations in its work load. For budgetary and admi­
nistrative reasons, therefore, he hoped that the Council 
would agree to meet every Saturday morning throughout 
the session. 

4. The PRESIDENT asked the Argentine representative 
to give him until the following day to discuss the matter 
with the Secretariat, so that a solution satisfying all 
members of the Council might be found. 

44. Examination of annual reports on the 
administration of Trust Territories 

(resumed from the 19th meeting) 

RuANDA-URUNDI, 1948 (T/217, T/217jAdd.1, T/361 
and T /361/Add.1) 

5. The PRESIDENT invited the Council to consider the 
annual report of the Administering Authority for the 
Trust Territory of Ruanda-Urundi for the year 1948. 1 

• See Rapport soumis par la Gouvernemenl belge a l'Assemblee 
generale des Nations Unies au sujet de l'administralion du Ruanda­
Urundi pendanll'annee 1948: Bruxelles, 1949. 

At the invitation oflhe President, Mr. Pelillon, Governor 
of Ruanda-Urundi, look his place allhe Council table. 

6. Mr. PETILLON (Governor of Ruanda-Urundi) said 
that he had only been in charge of the administration 
of Ruanda-Urundi for six months, and had therefore 
not taken part in the drafting of the annual report 
for 1948. The Belgian Government had therefore 
thought it preferable to entrust the explanation of that 
report not to him, but to Mr. Pierre Leroy, Head of the 
Department of Legal Claims and of Justice, whose sphere 
of action covered the matters with which the United 
Nations was concerned. He himself was present as a 
mark of respect to the Council. His Government had 
asked him to introduce Mr. Leroy, its special repre­
sentative. He also wished to follow the discussions on 
Ruanda-Urundi, and so to make contact with the 
United Nations and ascertain what matters were of 
particular concern to the Trusteeship Council. 

7. Ruanda-Urundi, a high, mountainous area in the 
centre of Africa, remote from either ocean, was a country 
which until recent years had been isolated from the 
rest of the world. That explained the profound dif­
ferences between Ruanda-Urundi and neighbouring 
territories. Its area, about one-fortieth of that of the 
Belgian Congo, was approximately 54,000 square kilo­
metres : 25 per cent of that area was unsuitable for 
cultivation or stock-raising for one reason or another ; 
of the remaining 75 per cent, 42 per cent was agricultural 
land, 29 per cent pasture and 4 per cent fo~est land. 
The Trust Territory had the densest populatiOn of the 
Central African countries. On the average, each family 
at present had 2.88 hectares for cultivation, and there 
were a further 1.63 hectares of pasture per head of 
cattle. In some areas, those figures fell below 1.50 hec­
tares and 1 hectare respectively. Yet in Ruanda­
Urundi each family needed from 2 to 5 hectares, accord­
ing to the region, and each head of cattle 3 .hectares 
of pasture, to live normally. Moreov~r, ag~ICultur~l 
yields were inadequate, as a resul.t of .mte.r:lSlve cul~t­
vation and the consequent detenoratwn m the sml, 
which 'all the efforts of the Administering Authority 
had been unable to check. The climate was equatorial, 
the rainfall inadequate and irregular. Furthermore, 
differences of altitude divided the country into a number 
of regions each of which had its distinct climate. 
Finally, the distribution of water was unfavourable. 

8. A comparison between the figures yielded by ~he 
census of population and land and those correspondmg 
to the areas required per family and per head of cattle, 
showed that on 31 December 1949, there had been 
145,000 families in excess of the desirable maximum 
of 780,000, and out of 965,000 head of cattle, over 
450,000 had been surplus. 

9. The essential problem was therefore how to enable 
men and livestock to live. Proof of that statement 
was to be found in the fact that out of 1,103,745 hec­
tares of land under cultivation, only 28,722 hectares, 
that was 2. 7 per cent, were devoted to raising pro­
ducts for export. The output of foodstuffs, totalling 
2 894 000 tons from the remainder was all consumed 
o~ th~ spot. Even when crops were good, the tonnage 

153 



of foodstuffs exported never exceeded 0.5 per cent by 
volume of the total production. Agricultural products 
for export cultivated on the 28,722 hectares amounted 
to 20,200 tons. 

10. The value of the Territory's total production 
amounted to 2.4 milliard francs: 1,763 millions for 
foodstuffs and 172 millions for exportable agricultural 
products. 

II. Total exports of all products from the Territory 
had amounted only to 72,000 tons, of which 51,000 tons 
had gone to the Belgian Congo, and 21,000 tons to 
other countries. Imports could he broken down into 
29,000 tons from the Belgian Congo, and 21,000 tons 
from other countries. 

12. The Territory had a favourable balance of trade, 
both with the Belgian Congo and with other regions. 
It had showed a favourable balance of 43 million francs 
for 1948, which should be considered in relation to the 
value of total production he had just quoted. The 
country produced too large a bulk of low-value com­
modities, and too small a quantity of valuable products. 
One remedy would be to increase the yield of the lands 
at present used for raising foodstuffs. That was what 
the Administering Authority had been trying to do for 
many years. A second remedy would be to import 
a certain quantity of foodstuffs costing little more at 
Usumbura than local products. In both cases, a larger 
area of arable land could be used for the cultivation of 
products for export. Both solutions would doubtless 
be necessary, hut a further factor had to he taken into 
account-namely, the increase in the human and live­
stock populations. The indigenous population of 
Ruanda-Urundi, according to the census taken on 
31 December 1948, numbered 3,860,747, over one-third 
of that the Belgian Congo, which was forty-three times 
larger in area than was the Trust Territory. In Ruanda­
Urundi, the density of population varied from 35 to 
142 per square kilometre. It seemed likely that the 
population would increase by an average of 100,000 a 
year, so that it would be doubled within forty years. 
Cattle, too, were tending steadily to increase by about 
120,000 head a year. Thus, to maintain the numbers 
at the required level, it would be necessary to remove 
each year 50,000 head of cattle in order to eliminate 
the present surplus within ten years, plus the 120,000 
head annual increment, or a total of 170,000 head. 
As local consumption and exports to the Belgian Congo 
accounted for only 90,000 head a year, new outlets 
would have to be found. The livestock in question 
was of poor economic value, and the situation was 
further complicated by the fact that the social rank 
of individuals was determined by the number of cattle 
they owned. The aim of the Administering Authority 
was to reform the native mentality, to bring about a 
progressive improvement in the quality of livestock, 
and to improve the standard of pasture. 

13. Those problems, and a number of others, were at 
present the subject of general study at Usumbura. The 
Belgian Government had decided to draw up a ten-year 
plan for the economic and soci.al dev.elopment of the 
Territory similar to that pubhshed m 1949 for the 

Belgian Congo. The plan, which would probably be 
completed by October 1950, would he submitted to ~he 
Governor-General and to the Minister for the Colomes, 
and published about 1 January 1951. It would be 
composed of five sections, dealing respective!~ with the 
population and its requirements, the eqmpment of 
public services, the development of agriculture and 
stockraising, mining and industrial development, and, 
finally, problems connected with requirements in per­
sonnel and finance. 

14. It could be assumed that, apart from the solutions 
in the agricultural field already mentioned, the plan 
would advocate the development of mining and industry 
in the Territory. As the development of mining ~as 
dependent on fresh discoveries of minerals, an extensive 
prospecting programme would be undertaken. !ndu~­
trial progress would be based largely on the Temtory s 
abundant supply of labour, which could make an essen­
tial contribution to a manufacturing organization for 
the conversion of raw materials, both from the Terri­
tory itself and from various sparsely populated areas 
in the centre of which it was conveniently situated. 

15. The Administering Authority had not only just 
become aware of the d·anger referred to. During the 
twenty-five years of Belgian administration in Ruanda­
Urundi the local authorities had had gradually and 
in turn 'to occupy the country, to get to know its peoples 
with their highly individual customs, to equip the 
country economically and finally to administe.r it. !?ey 
had also had the task of gradually reforming Its pohti:ai 
structure and of inculcating in the population the notiOn 
of steady labour as an enduring safeguard against hunger 
and sickness. They had had, moreover, gradually to 
lead the Bami, the chiefs and the influential elements 
among the indigenous population, to. a.dopt . mor~ effi­
cient and modern methods of admJmstratwn m all 
fields. Finally, they had had to work in the spheres 
of evangelization, education, health, and economic and 
social advancement. 

16. All that work had been accomplished in the course 
of a very disturbed quarter-century, marked by several 
economic crises which had hit the new and poorly 
organized country very hard, and whic~ had culmina~ed 
in a war more terrible than the precedmg one. Durmg 
that conflict, all activities which did not make a 
direct contribution to victory had had to be reduced 
to a minimum. 

17. The results to which attention had b.een d.ra:vn 
and which had been commended by the Visitmg.Mission 
in its report (T /217) bore witness to the magmtude ~f 
the effort made by the Belgians in Ruanda-U.rundi. 
Further proof of that effort was to be foun.d m the 
annual budgets. Ordinary budgetary expe~d.Iture had 
risen from 34 million francs in 1930 to 322 m~ll~on francs 
in 1950 to which must be added the 100 million francs 
covered by the extraordinary budget. 

18. In those budgets, expenditure in the ~ire?t interest 
of the indigenous population had steadily mcreaste~, 
and now amounted to about 50 per ce~t of t~e tot~~ 
Thanks to Belgium's cautious financial pohcy, 

154 



public debt had been reduced to 20 million francs 
itself an indication of the excellent financial situatio~ 
of the Territory. 

19. There was, however, a risk that that situation 
would to some extent deteriorate. The deficit in the 
ordinary budget would probably amount to 115 million 
francs for 1949, and to 150 million francs for 1950. 

20 .. The reason for that change was that the develop­
~ent of the country involved an increase of expenditure 
~n all directions, which was not offset by any increase 
m revenue. Fresh study of the financial problem as a 
whole was urgently needed. He could, however, indicate 
that the Belgian Government had already decided to 
advance 150 million francs to cover the deficit in the 
ordinary and extraordinary budgets of the Territory 
for 1950. 

21. With regard to the political advancement of the 
Territory, the documents submitted to the United 
Nations and the information given to the Visiting 
Mission made clear what had already been accomplished 
and what the Administering Authority hoped to achieve 
in the near future. 

22. During 1948, the political structure had been con­
siderably improved as was shown by the participation, 
since 1949, of the two Bami in the Council of the Vice­
Government-General, the decision to enable the Bami 
to visit Europe, the abolition of obligatory labour ser­
vice under customary law, the reduction in the number 
of cases in which the punishment of whipping could 
be applied and, last but not least, the forthcoming sub­
mission to the Belgian legislature of a bill for the reform 
of the indigenous political structure, providing for the 
setting up of partially elective councils at all the stages 
in the chain of command, and the endowment of the 
Councils of Ruanda and of Urundi with certain legis­
lative powers. 

23. Those achievements and plans were a response to 
the recommendations formulated by the Trusteeship 
Council 2 and the Visiting Mission ; the latter were 
contained in its report (chapter V, A, sections 2 and 3, 
and chapter V, C, section 5). 

24. The Administering Authority had the intention 
of acting in accordance with those recommendations, 
but was anxious not to be too precipitate. It wished 
to co-ordinate reforms in such a way as to avoid the 
dangerous consequence of creating something artificial 
and out of harmony with the real rate of progress of 
the country. 

25. When the time was ripe for those projects, it would 
be necessary for the Administering Authority to appeal 
to the peoples of the Territory. As was well known, 
it was the traditional policy of the Belgian Government 
to have wide recourse to the co-operation of the indi­
genous authorities, and of the peoples themselves, in 
the implementation of plans conceived in the interests 
of all. That policy would have to be even more gene­
rally followed in the future, since it would otherwise 

• See Of!icial Records of the third session of the General Assembly, 
supplement No. 4. 

be impossible to undertake the fundamental recon­
struction of the country's economy, the regrouping of 
its population with a view to ensuring better distribu­
tion, the solution of problems of livestock and of pro­
duction, the improvement of the Territory's commercial 
organization, and the establishment of local industries. 
Nor would it otherwise be possible to ensure greater 
efficiency in educational, medical and social matters, 
to transform the indigenous mentality and adapt it 
to a new order, in a word, to achieve progress, unless 
the conscious and voluntary collaboration of the indi­
genous authorities and peoples was assured. To that 
end, it would be necessary for institutions to be estab­
lished and developed which would enable the people 
to work out its own destiny. New functions and new 
powers would be conferred on the population, and 
evolution towards self-government and independence 
would take place in accordance with the true rhythm 
of its innermost life. 

26. Ruanda-Urundi was just emerging from its infancy. 
Though far from maturity, it must be prepared for its 
future as a self-governing country. The moment had 
come for constructive reform based on the recommen­
dations of the Council and achieved at a rate combining 
boldness with prudence and determined by the Admi­
nistering Authority. 

27. The PRESIDENT thanked the Governor for his very 
interesting statement. 

At the invitation of the President, Mr. Leroy, special 
representative of the Administering Authority for the Trust 
Territory of Ruanda-Urundi, took his place at the Council 
table. 

28. Mr. SAYRE (United States of America) expressed 
his keen interest in the annual report, and in the state­
ment made by the Governor of Ruanda-Urundi. He 
would have appreciated additional information about 
the proposed political reforms mentioned in section 1, 
paragraph (e) (page 5), of the preface to the annual 
report, in particular about the probable methods of 
electing members of the proposed councils, and about 
the proposed regulatory powers of the Conseils de Pays. 

29. Mr. LEROY (special representative) replied that 
that question concerned an extremely important reform 
of the Territory's political structure. The relevant 
studies, which had taken longer than expected, had 
now been completed by the local administration and 
were under review by the Minister for the Colonies, 
who would submit the draft reform to the legislature. 
He had practically nothing to add, in that connexion, 
to the statement by the Governor. He hoped next 
year to be able to provide any information desired on 
the point. 

30. Mr. SAYRE (United States of America) asked 
whether he was right in supposing that it had been 
definitely decided in principle that the reforms would 
be carried out, and that detailed arrangements for 
carrying them out would be made in the Trust Terri­
tory, after the most important provisions had been 
approved in Brussels. 

155 



31. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said that 
initially the question had been studied by the local 
administration, which had drawn up a fairly detailed 
plan and transmitted it to the central authorities at 
Brussels. The plan would be examined by the Ministry 
and thereafter submitted to the legislature which, he 
was convinced, was prepared to go ahead in the matter. 

32. Mr. SAYRE (United States of America) said that 
the steps taken by the Administering Authority towards 
carrying out the political reforms deserved commen­
dation. 

33. Sir Alan BuRNS (United Kingdom) asked whether 
it was intended that members of the councils should be 
elected by ballot. 

34. 1\fr. LEROY (special representative) replied that 
that aspect of the matter had not yet been finally 
settled and that voting procedure gave rise to certain 
difficulties owing to the still comparatively high pro­
portion of illiterates in the Territory. The Adminis­
tering Authority was doing its utmost to ensure a free 
vote when elections came to be held. 

35. Mr. KHALIDY (Iraq) said that, if it was not too 
soon to ask, he would appreciate some information about 
the probable powers and functions of the proposed 
councils. 

36. 1\lr. LEROY (special representative) observed that 
it was too soon to give a detailed reply to that question. 
Nevertheless, he could say that the legislative council 
which would very probably be set up would deal with 
native affairs to begin with, and would gradually acquire 
more general powers as time went on. 

37. 1\lr. KnALIDY (Iraq) asked for information about 
the strength of the indigenous inhabitants' attachment 
to tribal customs and their readiness to accept demo­
cratic ideals. 

38. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said that the 
African in Ruanda-Urundi was extremely attached to 
his tribal institutions. A complete educational process 
would be required to adapt him to the democratic 
ideal of the Belgians. He would point out to the Coun­
cil, by way of information, that a trial election had 
been held in 1949 at tbe extra-customary centre of 
Usumbura. Several members had to be appointed to 
a council and the indigenous population had been 
invited to elect them. The experiment had proved 
somewhat disappointing, not because the choice made 
by the indigenous population had been irresponsible 
or bad, but because that population had regarded the 
election as unwelcome drudgery, although the Admi­
nistration had done its utmost to convince it of the 
importance of the act. Rather surprisingly, the more 
educated Africans regarded it as beneath their dignity 
to take part in such elections with the remainder of 
the indigenous population. Nevertheless, the Admi­
nistration was determined to continue its efforts in 
that direction. 

39. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) asked whether the Admi­
nistering Authority intended to allow illiterates to 
participate in elections in Ruanda-Urundi. 

40. Mr. LEROY (special representative) replied that 
illiterates must participate in the elections, at least. to 
some extent, since some of them were notables. Illite­
racy could not be made a ground for discriminatio~ 
at elections. 

41. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) asked whether there 
were at present, or whether there would be when tb: 
proposed elections for membership of the councils we:-t 
carried out, any standard rules for the Trust Territor;; 
as a whole governing voting by illiterates. 

42. Mr. RYCKMANS (Belgium) observed that for th' 
time being there was no law on the suffrage. H: 
requested that the special representative should n:; 
be asked for particulars of the studies which had bee: 
submitted by the Administering Authority to high:: 
authority with which the final decision rested. It we.; 
very difficult for the special representative to divu!~: 
such plans before higher authority had indicated wh1c 
of them would be submitted to the legislature, z.r:: 
which did not meet with its approval. 

43. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) asked for the vi~\vs .c' _ 
the Administering Authority on the passage, m t::: 
Visiting Mission's report (chapter V, A, section ~ 
reading : " The mission is under the impression the: 
the people of Ruanda-Urundi today are enjoying 
regime of peace and security, but in an atmosphe~: 
that is not quite so free as it could be. Now. t~c.: 
peace and security have been established, the ~h?s1c: 
hopes, the ideal of liberty will also be progressively 
fostered." 

44. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said th~t wa: 
a problem of such wide scope that it was very d1fficul_r 
to give precise information on the point. The ~dml­
nistering Authority had the greatest respect _for. hberty 
in all its forms. It had guaranteed the md1genou> 
population all fundamental human . righ~s, and wa> 
determined to go as far as was possible m that field. 
Nevertheless it should not be forgotten that the peoples 
in question had been in the most backward ~ondition 
imaginable in 1919, and that the League ?f Nab?ns, and 
thereafter the United Nations, had considered It. essen· 
tial to place them under mandate or trust~esJ:Ip. _It 
was obvious that some restriction of their hbertJe; 
had to be imposed until their d~ve~opment was corn· 
plete. He hoped that such restnctwns would be pro· 
gressively relaxed as time went on. 

45. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) asked for additional 
information to that given in section 7. (page 9) of the 
preface to the annual report concernmg pumshment 
by whipping in the Territory. 

46. Mr. LEROY (special representative) explained t.hat 
the abolition of whipping was a much-debated questwn. 
He himself had lived 13 years among the peoples of 
the Congo and five years among those ?f R~an?a· 
U d . d had never witnessed a pubhc whippmg 

run 1, an h t · · 
without a feeling of discomfort. But e some 1m.e~ 
wondered whether that was due to a some~hat mis· 

I d 
•t· 't So far as Ruanda-Urundl was con· 

pace sensi IVI Y· "d d 
cerned, the question of whipping should be consi ere 

156 



from three points of view. With regard to whipping 
as a penalty inflicted by the courts, it had to be admitted 
that internal order in the Territory required the punish­
men~ of offences. It was a matter of striking a happy 
medmm between necessary deterrents and that humani­
tarian treatment which was the right of all men 
even of c:iminals. No one would dream of denyin~ 
that Belgmm, a country where corporal punishment 
w~s unknown and the death penalty practically non­
existent, had shown the greatest leniency in the treat­
ment of her criminals. Nevertheless, where penalties 
were too light or public solicitude for criminals too 
marked, society ceased to enjoy adequate protection. 
Corporal punishment was still sanctioned in certain 
highly civilized countries. If criminals thought more of 
the dignity of their victims, it would perhaps be less 
necessary to think of theirs. 

47. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) intervened to ask whe­
ther the Administering Authority did not intend to 
abolish corporal punishment in Ruanda-Urundi. 

48. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said he could 
answer that question in the affirmative at once. 
Resuming his statement, he referred to the question 
of whipping as a disciplinary measure in military units 
or prisons. In that case also there was much to be 
sai~ for it, since the conception of human dignity 
vaned according to geographical latitude. He himself 
had known an African whom he had sentenced to four 
days' solitary confinement come to him and ask to 
be whipped, that was, to be punished like a man. 

49. With regard to whipping as a disciplinary measure 
in prisons, it seemed preferable that, when rules were 
violated, the guilty prisoner should realize that he was 
liable to a maximum of eight lashes rather than that 
the punishment should be left to the initiative of 
warders, some of whom might be given to brutality. 

50. Lastly, pro memoria, until 1948, the Administering 
Authority had tolerated whipping to compel Africans 
to plant certain crops as a means of combating the 
fairly frequent threats of famine. That measure had 
been formally prohibited since 1948. 

51. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines), referring to section 5 
(page 8) of the preface and to question 64 (page 65) 
of the annual report, asked whether the Administering 
Authority was abolishing or planned to abolish, com­
pulsory tribute to chiefs and sub-chiefs in the form of 
work or in kind. 

52. Mr. RYCKMANS (Belgium) observed that the reply 
was to be found in the sections of the report referred 
to by the Philippines representative. 

53. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said that tri­
bute in the form of labour had now completely disap­
peared. The last surviving forms of such tribute­
namely, road construction and weeding-had been 
replaced by an annual tax of 10 francs per head. The 
African districts now employed regular workmen to 
perform such work. Information on the subject was 
to be found under question 64 (page 65) of the report. 

54. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) asked what was the 
Administering Authority's opinion of the Visiting 
Mission:s suggestion, contained in its report (chapter V, 
A, sectiOn 1), that the Authority: "should envisage 
the modification of the system of administrative union 
between Ruanda-Urundi, and the Belgian Congo on 
the basis of partnership rather than subordination ". 

55. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said that a 
very detailed reply (T/AC.l4/28) dated 8 June 1949 had 
been given by the Belgian Government to the questions 
relating to the administrative union between Ruanda­
Urundi and the Belgian Congo, submitted by the Com­
mittee on Administrative Unions in annex IV of its 
interim report to the Council (T /263) at its fourth 
session. Those replies showed that there was no ques­
tion of subordinating the interests of Ruanda-Urundi 
to those of the Belgian Congo. 

56. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) asked whether the situa­
tion remained unchanged since those questions had 
been answered. 

57. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said that the 
situation had evolved to the extent that, in order to 
meet suggestions of the Trusteeship Council, the Govern­
ment-General of the Belgian Congo had ceased to deal 
with a whole series of questions which directly concerned 
Ruanda-Urundi. But in fact those questions concerned 
neither policy, nor the advancement or liberty of the 
inhabitants, because all such questions had already 
been handled direct in Ruanda-Urundi itself. The 
Trusteeship Council would doubtless agree that it was 
a matter of comparative indifference whether it was 
the Governor-General of the Belgian Congo who settled 
health measures applicable to airports, the width of 
roads, etc. All questions relating to African policy 
and all those concerning the advancement of the indi­
genous population were handled separately for Ruanda­
Urundi. In such cases, the administrative union had 
no powers. 

58. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines), drawing attention to 
the opinion of the Visiting Mission expressed in its 
report (chapter I, section 5, eleventh paragraph) that 
there was no justification for excluding Africans from 
the Vice-Government-General's Council, said that the 
Trusteeship Council should commend the Administering 
Authority for acting on the Mission's recommendation 
in its report (chapter V, A, section 2) that the Bami 
of Ruanda and of Urundi should be appointed members 
of that Council. Had the Administering Authority 
acted on, or did it intend to act on the accompanying 
recommendations that " three or four African notables 
or leaders . . . should be appointed members of the 
Council " as well as the Bami, and that the Council, 
which at the time of the recommendation had been an 
advisory organ, " should be developed into a legislative 
council in the near future " ? 

59. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said that the 
two Bami-namely, the Mwami of Urundi and the 
Mwami of Ruanda, had attended the 1949 sessions of 
the Vice-Government-General's Council on exactly the 
same basis as other members, and had had complete 

157 



freedom to express their views. The results · of the 
experiment had, therefore, fully justified the admission 
of Africans to the Council. The local administration 
was not unwilling to consider widening such African 
participation in the work of the Council in the more 
or less near future. 

60. Replying to a further question by the Philippines 
representative, he said that the question of granting 
legislative powers to the Vice-Government-General's 
Council had not yet been examined. To give the Council 
such legislative powers would be, to some extent, an 
actual negation of the Trusteeship system. 

61. He further observed that since, under the Trustee­
ship Agreement for the Territory of Ruanda-Urundi, 
Belgium had been entrusted with the administration of 
Ruanda-Urundi and since, under the same Agreement, 
she exercised all legislative powers in the Territory, 
there could be no question at the present time of trans­
ferring those powers to a council of Ruanda-Urundi. 

62. Mr. KHALIDY (Iraq), referring to the replies given 
to the que:o.tions put by the Philippines representative 
concerning the administrative union between the 
Belgian Congo and Ruanda-Urundi, asked whether the 
Administering Authority had sounded the opinion of 
the peoples of Ruanda-Urundi on the question of the 
integration of the Trust Territory with the Belgian 
Congo. 

63. Mr. LEROY (special representative) pointed out 
that the question of integrating Ruanda-Urundi with 
the Belgian Congo had never been considered, even by 
the Belgian Government, and he was at a loss to under­
stand why the local administration should have to con­
sult the Bami on the matter. 

64. Mr. RYCKMANS (Belgium), who recalled that he 
had been Governor of Ruanda-Urundi at the time of 
the creation of the administrative union of that Terri­
tory with the Belgian Congo, explained that the leading 
native chiefs at that period had been utterly ignorant 
on questions of general administration. Hence there 
could have been no question of consulting them. The 
decision in 1925 had been taken after consultation with 
the local authorities of the Belgian Congo and the local 
authorities of Ruanda-Urundi. The latter, although 
extremely jealous of their independence, had agreed to 
administrative union with the Belgian Congo because 
they had realized all the advantages which would accrue 
to Ruanda-Urundi, especially in the technical sphere 
and in the fields of agriculture and public health, where 
the central services had had far greater resources at 
their command than had the local ones. He was 
convinced that if the question were put to-day to the 
Governor of Ruanda-Urundi, no objection would be 
forthcoming from any quarter to administrative union, 
the advantages of which were unanimously recognized 
by the African population. 

65. Mr. PETILLON (Governor of Ruanda-Urundi) 
pointed out, in further amplification of the Belgian re­
presentative's remarks, that th~ questio~ of administra­
tive union had already been raised previOusly, and that 
the Administering Authority had replied in writing that 

the indigenous population as a whole was not yet suffi­
ciently mature to consider such problems, although its 
chiefs realized the advantages of union with the Belgian 
Congo. To illustrate his thesis, he quoted passages • 
from speeches by the Mwami of Urundi and the Mwami 
of Ruanda in the Vice-Government-General's Council 
on 15 April 1948, in which they had expressed their 
approval of administrative union. 

66. Mr. Lw (China) asked whether the numbers of 
persons sentenced in Ruanda-Urundi to be whipped 
had increased or decreased since the end of 1948. 

67. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said he had no 
statistical data on the question of whipping. As he 
had already stated, the form of punishment had ceased 
to be applied administratively in the case of agricultural 
workers as from 15 September 1948; generally speaking, • 
it was in process of disappearing. 

68. Mr. SAYRE (United States of America) asked 
whether the Secretariat could provide any information 
as to the manner in which the written questions and the 
answers thereto would be published. He was under 
the impression that they were normally annexed to the >­

Official Records of the Council but wondered whether 
it would not be preferable in future if they were to 
appear in the same document as the oral questions and 
replies. Such procedure would, he bclievt>d, facilitate 
research work and would, moreover, avoid the impres­
sion that a greater importance was attached to oral 
than to written questions. 

69. Mr. ALEKSANDER (Secretary to the Council) replied 
that the oral questions and replies thereto were to be 
found in the Summary Records of the Council whereas 
the written questions were assembled in a separate 
document, which in due course found its place in the 
corpus of the Council's documents. He was con­
sequently not certain whether it would be possible to 
print the oral and written questions and replies together 
since that would involve printing the former twice. 

70. Mr. SAYRE (United States of America) believed 
that it would be desirable to reproduce all questions 
and replies in one and the same document. 

71. The PRESIDENT agreed that it would be advisable 
to treat written and oral questions alike. He would 
study the question with the Secretariat and acquaint 
the Council with his conclusions. 

72. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) proposed, in view of the 
fact that the special representative had not yet been 
able to provide written replies to written questions on , 
the political aspect of the annual report, that the Council 
proceed to discuss other aspects of the report on the 
understanding that further clarification of any issues 
arising from the political sections might be requested 
by Members of the Council at a later stage. 

73. Mr. RYCKMANS (Belgium) suggested that the sim­
plest procedure would be to send the written questions 
to the Administering Authority in good time to all~w 
it to collect all the necessary information. Repl~es 
to written questions need not, he stressed, necessarily 
themselves be written. An oral reply might suffice, the 

158 



text being included in any case in the verbatim record 
and in a condensed form in the Summary Record of the 
meeting at which it was made. What mattered was 
not that the reply to a given question should be written 
or oral, but that the question should be put sufficiently 
early to allow the reply to be based on accurate infor­
mation. 

74. The PRESIDENT agreed that the important point 
was that questions should be submitted in ample time 
to allow the Administering Authority to collect the 
necessary material to satisfy the questioner's require­
ments. The purpose of written questions was not to 
delay the discussion, but to expedite it, and so to enable 
the special representatives to answer questions with all 
the facts at their finger tips. 

The meeting was suspended al 4.35 p.m. and was 
resumed al 5 p.m. 

75. Mr. LIU (China), referring to the remarks in the 
opening statement of the Governor of Ruanda-Urundi 
relating to the budgetary deficits in the Territory for 
the years 1948, 1949 and 1950, expressed gratification 
at the fact that those deficits were due in part to the 
social, economic and educational advancement achieved 
in the Territory, and asked by what methods the 
Administering Authority intended to cover them. 

76. Mr. PETILLON (Governor of Ruanda-Urundi) re­
called that he had already stated that the anticipated 
deficits for 1949 and 1950 would be covered by an 
interest-free loan of 150 million francs advanced to 
Ruanda-Urundi by the metropolitan country. 

Mr. Pelillon withdrew. 

77. Mr. LIV (China) asked what encouragement the 
Administering Authority was giving to Africans in 
setting up in trade on their own account, and whether 
any steps had been taken, in accordance with the 
Visiting Mission's suggestion contained in its report 
(chapter II, section 8, fifth paragraph), to institute 
classes at which the rudiments of trade and accountancy 
would be taught. 

78. Mr. LEROY (special representative) explained that 
the Administering Authority had not so far considered 
the organization of commercial training, its view being 
that the commercial education of the indigenous popu­
lation should be carried out in African business centres 
as well as in non-African commercial centres, where 
Africans could learn the rudiments of business and 
acquire the experience enabling them to set up in 
business on their own account later. 

79. Mr. Lw (China), noting the statement in section 5, 
paragraph 2 (page 8), of the preface to the annual 
report to the effect that no new road construction would 
in future be undertaken before the necessary mechanical 
equipment was available, asked whether the misuse 
of that equipment by African workmen and the wastage 
of manpower consequent upon the employment of 
unskilled labour had now ceased. He was gratified 
to learn from that section that the criticisms made by 
the Visiting Mission in jts report (chapter II, section 41, 
sixth paragraph) had been taken into account by the 

Administering Authority and that roadmen were now 
being paid regular wages. 

80. Mr. LEROY (special representative) stated that the 
Administration contemplated, as a future development, 
the progressive mechanization of public-works equip­
ment. As stated in section 5, paragraph 2 (page 8), of the 
preface to the annual report, the Government already 
possessed a small number of scrapers, road-rollers, stone­
crushers, and pneumatic hammers, and would add to 
that number, year by year, as necessary. Part of the 
anticipated budgetary deficits for 1949 and 1950 was 
due to expenditure on modern equipment of that kind. 

81. Mr. RYCKMANS (Belgium) drew the Chinese repre­
sentative's attention in connexion with the organization 
of commercial training in the Territory, to question 43 
(page 46) of the annual report, which recorded the 
establishment in business on their own account of 
Africans who had acquired business experience as 
employees of non-Africans, and the opening of a com­
mercial training section at the Leon Classe Institute, 
at Kigali, to provide an adequate theoretical grounding 
for Africans wishing to engage in business. Thus a 
beginning had already been made in implementing the 
Visiting Mission's suggestion. 

82. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) asked whether African 
workmen were receiving training in the use of mecha­
nical equipment. 

83. Mr. LEROY (special representative) pointed out 
that a certain number of Africans had already been 
trained in the use of modern equipment, at least of 
such as was already employed in the Territory. 

84. The number of such skilled workers was not very 
large at the moment, but would steadily increase as 
more and more mechanical equipment came to be used. 

85. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) asked the special repre­
sentative for his views on the statement in the Visiting 
Mission's report (chapter II, section 3, fourteenth para­
graph) to the effect that, since the cultivation of coffee 
was optional, the Administering Authority should see 
to it that its efforts to stimulate the production of 
coffee by Africans did not take the form of disguised 
compulsion. 

86. Mr. LEROY (special representative) denied that any 
compulsion or pressure was brought to bear on Africans 
by the Administering Authority, so far as coffee growing 
was concerned. The most that could be said was that 
it encouraged Africans to grow coffee and gave them 
advice on how to raise a very remunerative crop. 

87. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) asked whether the Admi­
nistering Authority contemplated the mechanization of 
any specific industry, in whole or in part. 

88. Mr. LEROY (special representative) explained that 
the Administration contemplated mechanizing indus­
try on the broadest scale. It was difficult for him to 
reply to the Philippines representative's question with­
out first obtaining more precise information from the 
local administration. 

159 



89. Mr. KHALIDY {Iraq) asked whether such trade 
unions as existed in the Territory played any part in 
political life and how much they depended on the 
guidance of Europeans. 

90. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said that 
hitherto trade unions had not taken any part in the 
political life of the Territory. Their primary function 
was to help in the settlement of disputes between 
employers and employees, and to protect the latter's 
interests. 

91. He agreed that Europeans had played a part in 
the setting-up of trade unions, but they had confined 
themselves to pointing out to indigenous workers that 
they had the right to form such unions, to submit 
claims and to defend their interests. In no case had 
Europeans attempted to make use of trade unions for 
their own ends or for political purposes. 

92. Mr. KHALIDY (Iraq) asked what steps the Admi­
nistering Authority was taking to remedy the shortage 
of doctors and nurses. Did the difficulties of recruit­
ment of such personnel which the Administering 
Authorities of other Trust Territories encountered also 
occur in Ruanda-Urundi? 

93. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said that the 
improvement of the medical services and an increase 
in the medical staff of Ruanda-Urundi formed part of 
the ten-year plan which, as stated by the Governor, 
would probably be published at the beginning of 1951. 
While he was not able to furnish detailed information, 
he was, nevertheless, in a position to state that the 
Ruanda-Urundi medical service was one of the main 
concerns of the Administering Authority. 

94. Mr. RYCKMANS (Belgium) pointed out that the 
Iraqi representative would find some of the information 
for which he had asked in chapter XII (pages 334 
and 335) of the statistical annex to the annual report. 
He pointed out that the whole of the staff referred to 
in that table as infirmiers diplomes had been trained 
at the Astrida school. Information on the professional 
training of indigenous nursing staff and medical assis­
tants was given under question 169 (pages 145 and 146) 
of the annual report. 

95. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) referred to the account 
in the Visiting Mission's Report to the situation relating 
to the scale of wages in the Territory. It was stated 
there that the wages of African workers were extremely 
low, the economic system of the Territory being based 
on a low wage scale. The Visiting Mission contested 
the validity of the arguments advanced by the Admi­
nistering Authority to justify that situation, and recom­
mended in its report (chapter III, section 5 (b)) that 
the latter should consider the possibility of a radical 
change in the wage system. A frank appraisal of the 
situation had been made by a commission of the 
Belgian Senate which had visited the Belgian Congo 
and Ruanda-Urundi in 1947. From a comparison of 
prices charged in the European stores and in areas 
worked by big companies, the commission had drawn 
the conclusion that the position of Africans was unhappy 
and called for remedial measures. It considered that 

160 

if internal economic expansion were achieved, all pro­
ducers and distributors would ultimately benefit and 
at the same time a system of exploitation based on 
excessively low wages would be ended. One member 
of that commission had indicated that those wages were 
scandalously inadequate. 

96. In discussing the Visiting Mission's report the 
Colonial and Foreign Affairs Committee of the Belgian 
Senate had emphasized that wages in many other Non­
Self-Governing Territories and independent countries, 
especially in underdeveloped areas were as low as, if 
not lower than, in Ruanda-Urundi. Could the special 
representative give the Council further information on 
that point? 

97. Mr. LEROY (special representative) pointed out 
that the question put by the Philippines representative 
dealt with the same matter as written question 26 
submitted by his delegation. If the Council had no 
objection, both questions would be dealt with at the 
same time. 

It was so agreed. 

98. Mr. AQUINO (Philippines) drew attention to the 
references in the Visiting Mission's report (chapter III, 
section 8) to discriminatory legislation. Under the Ordi­
nance of 11 September 1945, urban areas were divided 
into European, Asian and African quarters. The Visit­
ing Mission had recommended, in chapter III, section 8, 
of its report, a change in that legislation for the purpose 
of ensuring that identical standards of public health 
and adaptation to urban conditions were applied to all 
residents. Question 40 (page 44) of the annual report, 
however, indicated that the division of cities into 
quarters was made necessary by the different standards 
of living and customs of the various communities. 
That view was upheld in the report of the Commission 
of the Belgian Senate which invoked aesthetic and 
health reasons and claimed that the experience of cities 
in the British colonies, where there was no racial 
segregation, had not been successful. 

99. Mr. LEROY (special representative) said that racial 
discrimination in such matters as ownership of real 
estate and residential rights would not appear to be of 
major importance for Asiatics living in Ruanda­
Urundi. Although in towns Asiatics, Europeans and 
the indigenous inhabitants did live in separate quarters, 
that was not so much the result of racial discrimination 
as of a natural gregarious tendency on the part _of 
town dwellers of similar customs, way of life or social 
class as was indeed often the case in Europe. He 
quoted several examples in support of his a_rgume~t, 
and reminded the Council that petitions allegmg ractal 
discrimination were usually presented by persons who 
had had trouble with the legal authorities. 

100. Mr. KHALIDY (Iraq) said that a more app~opri~te 
term than racial discrimination might be raci~l dis­
tinction, which covered the cultural, economic a~~ 
political aspects of the problem. Would the specia 
representative agree that the proper solution to that 
problem lay in progressive education ? 



101. Mr. LEROY (special representative) was con­
vinced that racial distinctions would gradually disap­
pear. Members of the Council would have gathered 
from the Visiting Mission's report that such discrimi­
nation occurred in four fields : residence in urban dis­
tricts, the control of alcoholic liquor, the possession of 
arms and the prison system. The Administering Autho­
rity intended to do away completely with racial discri­
mination in the matter of the possession of arms and 
the control of alcoholic liquor. Discrimination in the 
case of the prison system really only existed according 
to the letter of the law. In practice, Asiatics and 
Europeans were on a footing of absolute equality. It 
was intended to replace the old laws by a new one and 
the Minister for the Colonies was at present studying 
the draft thereof. 

45. Tentative time-table for remainder 
of the sixth session 

102. Sir Alan BuRNS (United Kingdom) drew atten­
tion to the fact that the tentative time-table (Con­
ference room paper No. 13) submitted by the Secretariat 
did not allow for the full observance of the six-week 
period which, as requested by him at the second meeting, 
should be allowed to governments for drafting their 
comments on the reports of Visiting Missions. How­
ever, if the Council wished to adopt that time-table, 
he, for his part, would endeavour to secure his Govern­
ment's comments in time, and to ensure that the special 
representatives were present on the dates suggested. 

103. The PRESIDENT informed the Council that as it 
was impossible to tell how much time would be required 
for the question of Jerusalem, it had not been possible 
to draw up a final time-table. The dates in the paper 
which had been circulated could therefore only be con­
sidered as approximate. 

104. Replying to the point raised by the United King­
dom representative, that an interval of six weeks had 
not been entirely provided for, he explained that that 
was due to the fact that it was difficult to foretell the 
exact course the session would take. Nevertheless, in 
the case of the Trust Territories of the Cameroons and 
of Togoland under British and French administration, 
respectively, the Governments might instruct their 
special representatives to be at the Council's disposal 
on the dates shown in the time-table. 

46. Statement by the President on the telegram 
from the Geneva Association of United Nations 
Correspondents to the Secretary-General of the 
United Nations. 

105. The PRESIDENT read out a telegram sent on 
11 February to the Secretary-General of the United 
Nations by the Geneva Association of United Nations 
Correspondents, which read as follows : 

"The Geneva Association of United Nations Corres­
pondents formally protests against the release at Lake 
Success in advance of Geneva of the report to the 
Trusteeship Council of the Visiting Mission to West 
Africa. The Association reiterates its strongest objec-

tions to the killing of Geneva news stories for Geneva 
correspondents provoked by the present policy of the 
Department of Public Information of placing an 
embargo on material originating in Geneva so that it 
can be simultaneously released at Lake Success and 
elsewhere. The world's leading telegraphic services 
and newspapers now maintain a staff of correspondents 
at Geneva, but if the policy of the Department of 
Public Information remains unchanged and Geneva 
continues to be short-circuited as the point of origin 

·of United Nations news at Geneva, the international 
Press corps here will cease to exist. The Association 
can find no possible excuse for simultaneous release 
elsewhere of a purely Geneva story such as the report 
of the Visiting Mission, and urgently hopes that you 
will be able to take immediate steps to prevent any 
recurrence. - (Signed) Victor LusiNCHI (President)." 

106. Mr. KHALIDY (Iraq), speaking as ex-Chairman of 
the Visiting Mission to Trust Territories in West Africa, 
said that there had been a leakage, and that he wholly 
supported the attitude of the Geneva Association of 
United Nations Correspondents. He had written to 
the Assistant Secretary-General in charge of the Depart­
ment of Trusteeship and Information from Non-Self­
Governing Territories and would propose that the 
Council await a statement from the latter before passing 
judgment. 

107. The only other comment he would make at the 
present stage was that, although he completely sympa­
thised with the Geneva Association, the fault did not 
lie with the New York Press. 

108. The PRESIDENT said that enquiries would be 
made into the matter. He hoped that steps would be 
taken to prevent any recurrence. Unquestionably, the 
Visiting Mission alone could decide when its report 
should be published and communicated to the Press, 
either in whole or in part. 

The meeting rose at 6 p.m. 

225th meeting 

TWENTY-THIRD MEETING 
Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 

on Tuesday, 14 February 1950, at 2.30 p.m. 

President : Mr. Roger GARREAU. 

Present : The representatives of the following coun­
tries : Argentina, Australia, Belgium, China, Dominican 
Republic, France, Iraq, New Zealand, Philippines, 
United Kingdom, United States of America. 

Observer from the following country : Egypt. 

47. Question of an international regime for the 
Jerusalem area and protection of the Holy'' 
Places (General Assembly resolution 303 (IV) 
of 9 December 1949) (T/118fRev.2 and T/423) 
(resumed from the 21st meeting) 

I. The PRESIDENT requested members of the Council 
to refer to the draft Statute for Jerusalem prepared 

161 




